



**CONSTITUTION**  
**OF**  
**SAMPURN JANTA RAJ PARTY**



## **TABLE OF CONTENTS**

<b>ARTICLE I</b>	<b>NAME .....</b>	<b>3</b>
<b>ARTICLE II</b>	<b>OBJECTIVES OF THE PARTY.....</b>	<b>3</b>
<b>ARTICLE III</b>	<b>MEMBERSHIP OF THE PARTY.....</b>	<b>4</b>
<b>ARTICLE IV</b>	<b>ORGANS OF THE PARTY (ORGANIZATION STRUCTURE).....</b>	<b>5</b>
<b>ARTICLE V</b>	<b>OFFICE BEARERS OF THE PARTY.....</b>	<b>11</b>
<b>ARTICLE VI</b>	<b>RULES OF DISPUTE RESOLUTION &amp; DISCIPLINE.....</b>	<b>11</b>
<b>ARTICLE VII</b>	<b>BASICS OF RULES OF CONDUCT OF BUSINESS.....</b>	<b>11</b>
<b>ARTICLE VIII</b>	<b>FUNDING AND PARTY FUND.....</b>	<b>13</b>
<b>ARTICLE IX</b>	<b>PARTY'S CONSTITUTION AMENDMENT PROCEDURE.....</b>	<b>14</b>
<b>ARTICLE X</b>	<b>MEMBER, SPLIT AND DISSOLUTION PROCEDURE.....</b>	<b>14</b>
<b>ARTICLE XI</b>	<b>ALLEGIANCE TO THE CONSTITUTION OF INDIA .....</b>	<b>14</b>



## **ARTICLE 1 NAME:**

The name of the Party shall be – “**SAMPURN JANTA RAJ PARTY**” (Hereinafter referred to as “**THE PARTY**”).

## **ARTICLE II OBJECTIVES OF THE PARTY:**

The Party would strive to become “The party for every unemployed Indian”.

The broad objective of the Party would be to device an inclusive & progressive development agenda for all Indians and work for their well being through good governance and efficient implementation of programs & policies.

The Part is committed to bring about inclusive development while preserving our rich bio-diversity, environment and nation wealth.

And in achieving this objective, the party shall work on principles of Humanity, Honesty, Equality, Democracy and Professionalism.



## **ARTICLE III MEMBERSHIP OF THE PARTY:**

### **A. Membership Conditions:**

**Indian Citizens who subscribes to the constitution of the party and wants to become a member shall fulfill the following conditions:**

- **Should be of minimum of 18 years of age.**
- **Should not be a member of any other political party and should agree to abide by the rules and by-laws of the party.**
- **Should submit for approval an application in a format prescribed by The Party along with the self attested proof of identity and address.**

**The membership shall stand terminated on his/her expulsion, registration or death.**

### **B. Categories of Membership**

**The party will have two categories of memberships:**

- 1. Life Members**
- 2. Primary Members**

**The national Executive shall make changes to the membership fees and introduce new membership categories as deemed appropriate, from time to time.**



### **C. Membership fees**

- 1. Life Members will pay a onetime membership fee as prescribed.**

**The membership shall be valid for a period of 10 years and shall be renewed after paying appropriate membership fees prevailing at that point in time.**

- 2. Primary members will pay a membership fee as prescribed.**

**The membership shall be valid for a period of 3 years and shall be renewed after paying appropriate fees prevailing at that point in time.**

**The Life members and primary members shall have voting rights for the various party elections as per the Rules and Bye-laws of The Party.**



#### **D. Party Elections**

**Only Life Members can stand for party posts/positions conducted through elections.**

#### **ARTICLE IV ORGANS OF THE PARTY (Organization Structure)**

**The Organizational constituents of the Party shall be as follow:**

- **Constituency Working Group(CWG)**
- **State Governing Council(SGC)**
- **State Executive(SE)**
- **National Governing Council(NGC)**
- **National Executive(NE)**

#### **A. Constituency Working Group(CWG)**

**Scope:**

**One CWG per MP/MLA constituency. The constituency shall be defined as per the Election Commission of India from time to time.**

**Number of members:**

**CWG shall be formed with a maximum of 25 members**

**Tenure & Membership**

**As prescribed in the Rules and Bye-laws**



## **B. State Governing Council (SGC)**

### **Scope**

**SGC shall be formed one per every state and Union Territory. Members of SGC shall elect State Executive (SE).**

### **Structure**

- **Each MLA constituency will elect one SGC member. SGC members will be elected by the members of the party in the respective constituency.**
- **The Maximum number of SGC members shall be equal to the member of MLAs in the respective State/Union Territory.**
- **Life and Primary members can elect a member to the SGC provided there are at least 25 life members.**

### **Tenure**

**The tenure shall be for a period of 3 years. However, the tenure can be extended in case state Assembly Elections are expected within 6 months.**

## **C. State Executive (SE)**

### **Scope**

**SE shall be formed one per year State and Union Territory. SE will manage the affairs of the party in the state under the direction of National Executive (NE).**



## **Members**

- **Minimum 5 and maximum of 11. SE will have elected & nominated members. Nominated members will not exceed 1/3<sup>rd</sup> of the total members of SE.**
- **Members of the SE shall be elected by the members of the SGC.**
- **The elected members of the SE must be SGC members.**
- **The SE shall be setup when there are at least 25% SGC members of the total number of state legislature.**

## **Tenure**

**3 years. The tenure can be extended in case Assembly Elections are expected within 6 months.**

## **Withdrawal of Members**

**This can be by resignation or by termination. In case of breach of Code of Conduct, concerned SE member shall be terminated by an Empowered Committee of SE.**

## **D. National Governing Council (NGC)**





## **Scope**

- **The Governing Council shall have the power to prescribe by rules such matters as are herein provided to be so prescribed and such other matters which may be necessary for or incidental to carrying out the objects of the party.**
- **NGC shall elect the members of the National Executive (NE).**
- **NGC can initiate proceedings to terminate the NE and order fresh elections if at least 1/3<sup>rd</sup> of majority of the total NGC members in an Emergency/Regular National.**

## **Convention of NGC**

### **Members**

- **Maximum equal to the number of MPs in parliament. There shall be one NGC member per MP constituency.**
- **Members of the NGC shall be elected by the party members of the respective MP constituency.**
- **Life and Primary members can elect a member to the NGC provided there are at least 100 Life members in the constituency.**



- **A nominated NGC will be in place till at least 50NGC members are elected. During this period - the nominated NGC members can appoint additional NGC members with a simple majority vote ( including voting electronically/email).**

## **Tenure**

**3years. The tenure can be extended in case National Elections are expected wit in 6 months.**

## **E. National Executive (NE)**

### **Scope**

- **NE will manage the affairs of the party.**
- **Subject to the rule making powers of the National Governing Council (NGC). The National Executive shall have the power to frame such rules as may be necessary for or incidental to carrying out the program or activities of the party.**
- **NE shall make appropriate arrangements in the absence of the NGC, SE, SGC and /or CWG.**
- **Mergers/alliances/ MOUs with any other party or organization has to be with the approval of NE.**



## **Members**

- **NE shall have a maximum of 21 members of which 2/3<sup>rd</sup> of shall be elected by the members of the NGC and remaining 1/3<sup>rd</sup> shall be the nominated members.**
- **The elected members of the NE must be NGC members.**
- **A nominated NE will be in place till the party has a minimum of 50 elected NGC members. During this period, the nominated NE can appoint additional NE members with a simple majority vote of the NGC (including voting electronically / email).**

## **Tenure**

**3years. The tenure can be extended in case National Elections are expected within 6 months.**

## **Withdrawal of members**

**This can be resignation or by termination. In case of breach of code of conduct, as prescribed in the Rule and Bye-laws, concerned NE members shall be terminated by an Empowered Committee of NE.**



## **ARTICLE V OFFICE BEARERS OF THE PARTY**

**Members of the NE shall elect President. General Secretary and Treasurer. NE can create or prescribe other office bearers of the party as may be required.**

## **ARTICLE V RULES OF DISPUTE RESOLUTION & DISCIPLINE**

**The NE shall draft appropriate Code of Conduct, rules and guidelines for the working of the party. These shall be part of the Rules and Bye-laws of the party.**

**Any breach of rules, violation of Code of Conduct or internal disputes of the party shall be resolved through a Dispute Resolution process as prescribed by NE.**

## **ARTICLE VII BASICS OF RULES OF CONDUCT OF BUSINESS**

- The quorum for meetings will be 33% of the total strength**
- Of the respective bodies or as prescribed by NE. if quorum is not available the meeting may be adjourned and restarted after half an hour when meeting can commence**



without the prescribed quorum but having a minimum of 5 members.

- All decisions shall be taken by simple majority and / or as prescribed by the NE.
- All the party candidates shall strictly adhere to the Party's constitution in letter and spirit.
- The President will not vote on resolutions. He will however have a casting vote in case of a tie.
- In the event the President is unable to discharge his duties, for whatever reason, NE will nominate a person to take over the presidential duties and responsibilities.

## **ARTICLE VIII FUNDING AND PARTY FUNDS**

**Fund collection shall be through membership fees and contributions to the party. Receipts will be issued for contributions & membership fees.**

**Bank account will be opened in the name of the Party at National and State level to be jointly operated by any two authorized signatories.**

**Accounts of the party will be audited and approved annually. Usage of funds for the party activities and election activities shall be as prescribed by the NE.**



## **ARTICLE IX PARTY'S CONSTITUTION AMENDMENT PROCEDURE**

- 1. The NE can propose and recommend changes to the Constitution at the NGC National Convention.**
- 2. At least 1/3<sup>rd</sup> or 100 members (whichever is lower) of the NGC can propose amendments to the Constitution. The NGC can pass the amendment with a 2/3<sup>rd</sup> majority.**
- 3. The notice for such an amendments will require a 45 days notice period.**

## **ARTICLE X MERGER, SPLIT AND DISSOLUTION PROCEDURE**

**A proposal for merger, split or dissolution shall be approved by the 2/3<sup>rd</sup> majority of total NGC members.**

## **ARTICLE XI ALLEGIANCE TO THE CONSTITUTION OF INDIA**

**The party shall bear true faith and allegiance to the Constitution of India as by law established and to the principles of socialism, secularism and democracy and would uphold the sovereignty, unity and integrity of India.**

